
 

1 
 

Deerfield Beach Community Redevelopment Agency 
 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, March 9, 2010, 6:00 P.M. 

City Commission Chambers, Deerfield Beach City Hall 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Noland at 6:00 p.m. on the above date in the 
City Commission Chambers, City Hall. 
 
Roll Call: 
 

Present:  Mr. Bill Ganz  
Mr. Joseph Miller 

   Mr. Martin Popelsky  
    Vice Chair Sylvia Poitier – Late 
    Chair Peggy Noland 
 
 Also Present: 
    Burgess Hanson, Interim City Manager 
    Andrew Maurodis, City Attorney 
    Ada Graham-Johnson, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 

 
March 9, 2010 
 
MOTION was made by Mr. Ganz and seconded by Mr. Popelsky to approve the March 
9, 2010 agenda as submitted. 
 
Voice Vote:  Mr. Ganz, Mr. Miller, Mr. Popelsky, and Chair Noland. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 
None 
 

OLD BUSINESS 

 
   ITEM 5.1    TAPE 1, COUNT 034 
  

APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR DESIGN OF PIER 
RECONSTRUCTION 

 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

2 
 

NEW BUSINESS – CONTINUED  
 
Keven Klopp, CRA Director, requested authorization to enter into a contract with 
Volkert, Incorporated (s/b Associates) for design and construction phase services for 
pier reconstruction.  He explained that there is a separate contract for architecture with 
Garcia Stromberg; however, there will be a coordinated effort for the project.   
 
Andrew Maurodis, CRA Attorney, said that the contract will be modified, but asked for 
approval in the current form; subject to final approval by counsel as there is a very 
specific coordination that must occur between the architect and the engineer.   
 
In response to Chair Noland’s question, Mr. Maurodis replied that one of the exhibits 
provides for a specific time period. 
 
Mr. Klopp said that services may be added to the contract that will have definitive time 
frames.   
 
Mr. Ganz asked if this is for the engineering design. 
 
Mr. Klopp replied yes. 
 
Mr. Maurodis said that it would also be for construction administration.   
 
Mr. Klopp clarified that it would be for construction services because they are not 
administering the construction project; but only providing services during construction. 
 
Mr. Ganz asked if the City Attorney will be following the Commission’s recent guidelines 
for background checks for the subcontractors. 
 
Mr. Klopp replied that he is not sure it has been added.   
 
Mr. Maurodis stated that Sharon Cruz, Assistant City Attorney, is drafting an ordinance 
and it has become practice to include them in all the RFP’s. 
 
Mr. Miller said he is ready to take action on the item. 
 
Mr. Popelsky said that he is in agreement with the engineering portion, but inquired 
about the placement of the heavy equipment; as he does not want the walkway blocked 
from the parking lot to the restaurants.   
 
Mr. Klopp said that this will be a consideration; additionally, they will proceed with a 
construction manager at risk process and bring the manager in now to begin 
coordinating the two (2) designs, phasing, staging areas, etc.   
 
Mr. Popelsky asked if any repairs will be made to the bridge that fall below the water 
level. 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

3 
 

NEW BUSINESS – CONTINUED  
 
Mr. Klopp replied yes. 
 
Mr. Popelsky asked when the engineers will review it. 
 
Mr. Klopp replied upon approval of the contract a coordination meeting will be 
scheduled by the end of the week, or early next week.   
 
Mr. Popelsky asked if any Commissioners would be invited as he would like to attend.     
 
Mr. Klopp replied that he will provide a report subsequent to the meetings, but had not 
planned on including Commissioners as the meeting is very technical. 
 
Mr. Popelsky said that he had questioned the different methods for installing stanchions 
and what is best for the location, as well as the least amount of obstruction to any of the 
businesses.   
 
Burgess Hanson, Interim City Manager, said that he and Mr. Klopp would meet with the 
Board members after those meetings to provide an updated summary.   
 
Motion was made by Mr. Ganz and Seconded by Mr. Popelsky to approve Item 5.1, 
subject to final approval by counsel and subject to including the background checks.   
 
Roll Call: YEAS: Mr. Ganz, Mr. Miller, Mr. Popelsky, and Chair Noland.  NAYS: None. 
 
BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS 
 
Chair Noland said that she has received complaints from the businesses in the Cove 
Shopping Plaza regarding the construction on Hillsboro Boulevard; regarding 
construction in the Cove Parking Lot.  She explained the current situation with the traffic 
flow and other issues, and asked that the Board consider the ramifications.  Although, 
she does not want to halt business for the establishments that are still there; as the 
promise was that it will be done in sections, closing each lane down for 24 hours on 
Hillsboro Boulevard, by October, both lanes would be open and one lane would be 
periodically closed; however, that is not the case.   
 
Continuing, Chair Noland said that at the last meeting, the Board discussed purchasing 
property when construction begins in the beach area.  Currently, the construction plan 
appears to take parking from the front of Bob’s Pizza and Whales Rib.  She suggested 
that the Board consider purchasing some of the properties and requested an update on 
purchasing the properties. 
 
Mr. Klopp said that Item 6.1 included a report that has 12 items that he would like to 
discuss this evening; this was one of them.   
 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

4 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
Mr. Miller said that he also receives complaints; however, some people want to proceed 
and others do not.  He said that the two (2) step engineering plan will be the least 
destructive; however, the plan has not commenced and asked that Mr. Klopp proceed.  
He said that with the number of stores empty, this may be a good time to start 
construction.   
 
Vice Chair Poitier entered the meeting at this time. 
 
Mr. Ganz said that he does not want to see any delays on the rejuvenation of the 
parking lot.  He said that there is a huge difference between the two (2) projects, 
because it is difficult to work on Hillsboro Boulevard when people are moving through it.  
Additionally, he expressed concern with the two (2) tier process as it would delay the 
parking lot rejuvenation.  He said that he would like to move ahead and if the two (2) tier 
process is to be utilized, it needs to start quickly.  He said that the public spoke out and 
we agreed on a plan and it must be done speedily.    
 
   ITEM 6.1   TAPE 1, COUNT 0421 
 

PROJECT STATUS REPORT FROM CRA DIRECTOR 
 
Keven Klopp, CRA Director, referenced a letter he submitted to the Board, as a list of 
discussion points, not a priority list.  He said that the engineering plans for the pier 
projects are going through the normal procedure, Community Appearance Board, 
Planning & Zoning Board, as well as staff review.  Further, he said he will present a 
proposal from Garcia Stromberg to handle the LEED certification process; there are 
also support letters for the grant application which will go out by this week’s deadline.    
 
Continuing, Mr. Klopp said that at the last City Commission meeting, a request was 
made that the A1A PD&E Study be included on tonight’s agenda; however, he 
discouraged it due to the public interest and recommended a specific meeting for the 
public’s outreach for input.  Additionally, he has informed the Florida Department of 
Transportation (FDOT) and Metric, consulting engineer that the Board desires to move 
forward quickly.  There may not be a great alternative as there are pros and cons to all 
three (3) alternatives; however, to delay without action is a disincentive to investment in 
the area.  He said that he will attempt to have a full public outreach at the next meeting 
either before the Commission or CRA Board. 
 
RFQ for Real Estate Advisor Consulting Services – Mr. Klopp said that subsequent to 
the last meeting, he reached out to other CRA’s to see how they have handled property 
acquisition.  He suggested that the CRA consider a real estate consultant to assist the 
CRA in analyzing potential purchases, not necessarily an agent.  He said that he will 
provide a ranking process to the Board for consultant selection. 
 
FY 2011 Capital Improvement Plan – Mr. Klopp said that this may include property 
acquisition, but also the possibility of bonding; bonding out future CRA revenues and  



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

5 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
borrowing money to have a more substantial five (5) year Capital Improvement Plan.  
He explained that Sally Siegel, Finance Director, has assisted him by reaching out to 
financial contacts to gage the possibilities, and it was discovered that other CRA’s are 
looking to do this.  Bank loan financing is very possible in the future, but it would still 
come to the covenant from the City, but would be based upon very conservative future 
revenues of the CRA paying back the bond.  He said they will continue to pursue the 
option and report back to the Board. 
 
Hillsboro Boulevard Streetscape – Mr. Klopp said that they are close to finalizing the 
Hillsboro Boulevard Streetscape; however, there are concerns about bus benches.  
Although there are shelters, there are not as many benches.  He said that bus benches 
will be installed this month and FPL will begin working soon.  Furthermore, an extension 
on the Hillsboro Boulevard agreement with FDOT has been requested; the deadline is 
May, however, more time may be needed.  Notwithstanding, there was an automatic 
extension built in upon request. 
 
Antilla Plaza – Mr. Klopp said that this was the vacant property mostly built, but not 
complete, on the north side of the S-Curve.  He said that he continues to hear from 
potential buyers of Antilla Plaza that are finding issues and not moving forward with 
property acquisition.  He further stated that one of the potential buyers may request 
CRA assistance as they are walking away from the building because the price of 
acquisition added to the price of renovation and finishing the facility, with the return on 
investment, they are not interested anymore.  He said he has told the potential buyers 
what the possibilities are, but they have not moved forward.   
 
Chair Noland said that the bank is not budging at all.  She explained what buyers may 
face because the building has been vacant for so long; and may, possibly have mold 
issues, and they are asking an exorbitant price.  She asked if Mr. Klopp had been in 
contact with the bank to try and encourage them to work with a potential buyer.   
 
Mr. Klopp said that since the extension was granted they have not returned his calls.  
He said if the CRA decides to provide incentives, the bank, buyer, and possibly the 
CRA will have to contribute.  However, the CRA should not be sheltering this by itself, 
but if no one assists, the building will be vacant for quite some time. 
 
Chair Noland asked if there is anything that can be done to force the bank’s hand when 
they own a property that has been vacant for a number of years. 
 
Mr. Maurodis replied that there is nothing on the books. 
 
Chair Noland said that the bank is using the extension as collateral and they are trying 
to get more money by using that as leverage. 
 
Mr. Miller said that someone called him to determine if a contract was in place. 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

6 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
Mr. Klopp said that he is not aware of any contracts, and asked that all inquires be 
forwarded to him so that he can send them to the bank. 
 
Mr. Miller said that he spoke with someone who was interested in making it an art 
gallery. 
 
Mr. Klopp said that before the extension was granted, it was expired and there were 
code violations.  The Board had to decide whether to help the buildings be sold and get 
occupied or push for demolition.  He said had the Board considered demolition, they 
may have been sitting for a longer period of time.     
 
Vice Chair Poitier asked if consideration had been given on what fixed amount the CRA 
can invest in the project.   
 
Mr. Klopp replied that based on the taxable value, and an estimate of what the taxable 
value would be if and when it were rehabilitated and occupied.  He said that ad valorem 
revenue to the CRA over the next 20 years, approximately $150,000 would be realized 
with the building being occupied.   
 
Vice Chair Poitier said that if the CRA can offer incentives, a specific buyer is not 
needed.  She said that it is the Commission’s choice to decide what should be there 
and thereby encourage investors.  She said that the City of Hollywood developed 
Hollywood Boulevard by offering incentives, as they would attract investors faster. 
 
Mr. Klopp said that the CRA cannot offer incentives at this time as it is not in the CRA 
Plan.  In order to move forward with the proposal he recommended a plan amendment 
that included an incentive program that the CRA is comfortable with as a part of its 
plan.     
 
Mr. Ganz said that there should be some incentives, but we should not bailout a bank 
that has made poor decisions.  He said that he believes that the decision previously 
made was correct, even though the Board was reluctant.  However, he would like to see 
the gentleman who was here that night, receive the same hospitable treatment. 
 
Cove Shopping Center Parking Lot – Mr. Klopp said that this afternoon he attended the 
Island Partnership Plan meeting which is a beach based group that hopes to expand, 
broaden, incorporate, and embrace the Cove Shopping Center as well as the 
businesses west.  He said he briefly spoke with the Cove Restaurant operators and 
they have stated that they would like to discuss the parking lot.  He stated that he has 
received a mixture of calls both for and against starting the project.  He said the project 
is not being delayed and the permit process is still underway.  He further stated that 
Keith and Associates has provided many examples of the two (2) step process; 
however, he has not had the opportunity to schedule said process; nevertheless, this is 
not a means to delay it.  He suggested having a meeting with the businesses and 
property owners in the Cove Shopping Center to help them understand the plans and  



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

7 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
alleviate their fears.  He said that Royal Fiesta has offered use of their facility for the 
meeting.   
 
Continuing, Mr. Klopp said that while he was interacting with the public over the 
weekend, there were many comments about the condition of the shopping center and 
moving forward with the project. 
 
Vice Chair Poitier said that there have been meetings for the last five (5) years and 
there is always a different story.   
 
Chair Noland expressed that the concern is the Hillsboro Boulevard project has taken 
longer than expected.  She too has explained to various individuals that the project 
would be done in phases and will not be disruptive; however, they also expressed 
concern that when the Hillsboro Boulevard Project began that the shopping center 
would be open and they have had to call numerous times to address the problem.  She 
said that another business owner inquired about the sidewalk, and asked if people 
would be able to get from the parking lot into his business.  Therefore, she advised him 
something will be done to make sure the businesses are accessible. 
 
Mr. Klopp replied yes, they will maintain access to the businesses at all times.  He said 
that there possibly might not be overnight access or for one day while demolition is 
being done; otherwise, there would be access. 
 
Chair Noland said that she recalls a discussion on night work; whereby, if the sidewalks 
have to be paved at night, and asked that the Board consider such.  She said that she 
would like the transition to be the least disruptive.   
 
Mr. Hanson said that we have learned from past experiences, so Staff will communicate 
with the businesses and property owners on the project’s status.  Additionally, he said 
that we need to be cognizant of any night work as residential homes are nearby. 
 
Mr. Ganz asked if there is a risk for lawsuits due to the sidewalks not being ADA 
compliant. 
 
Mr. Hanson replied that the City has already been sued; the current improvements to 
public facilities are part of the suit agreement.  Furthermore, Mr. Hanson said that the 
lawsuit has already been settled; notwithstanding, there is a difference between private 
and public entities wherein more time is given to comply with those laws. 
 
Mr. Ganz asked how much are the businesses contributing towards the project. 
 
Mr. Klopp replied that funding is coming from their contributions to the CRA. 
 
Mr. Ganz said that we are getting direction from people who are not directly putting in 
any money, and after having public input meetings, we seem to be constantly delaying.   



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

8 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
He directed the CRA Director to have the meeting with Keith and Associates advising 
them to pick up the pace of the project, and suggested that everything else be set aside 
until the project is underway.  He strongly recommended moving forward and said that 
this project will be beneficial in the long run.   
 
Vice Chair Poitier concurred with Mr. Ganz. 
 
Mr. Klopp said that he will move forward with Keith and Associates. 
 
Mr. Miller said that it was his understanding that the unit owners own half of the 
sidewalk and the City owns the other half. 
 
Mr. Ganz asked if they are liable, to conforming with ADA compliance.   
 
Mr. Maurodis replied yes, if a portion of their property is not ADA compliant. 
 
Mr. Ganz said that they are running the risk of delaying this and it should be discussed 
with them. 
 
Mr. Miller asked if the unit owners must sign off as the CRA improves their sidewalks.     
 
Mr. Maurodis replied yes. 
 
Mr. Miller said that someone advised him that they do not want anyone damaging the 
front of their business.  He said that it occurred to him that we are willing to use CRA 
funds to improve the area, but there must be a signed release.  If that is the case, we 
must move faster to get the ball rolling. 
 
Mr. Maurodis said that the consensus needs to be obtained. 
 
Mr. Miller said that no other public input meetings are needed; however, the CRA 
should advise the owners how the project will proceed.  He also recommended working 
on the sign offs for the sidewalks.   
 
Vice Chair Poitier asked if the property owners owned half of the sidewalk, who will pay 
for their half.  
 
Mr. Maurodis said that a special assessment can be done, but the problem is our 
sidewalk is not ADA compliant and it must be improved.   
 
Vice Chair Poitier said that something must be done with regard to unfair treatment of 
costs, and recommended they be assessed.  
 
Mr. Maurodis said that this is not a normal situation; in that it is a shopping center and 
the City owns, maintains, and improves the parking lot. 



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

9 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
Vice Chair Poitier said that a special assessment is necessary as the CRA cannot 
afford to spend tax payer dollars on the project.   
 
Mayor Noland said that the area was special assessed 15 years ago, for three years, 
when the current renovations were done.   
 
Mr. Maurodis said that it is a lengthy process.   
 
Mr. Popelsky said that we discussed the sidewalks about a year ago, and it was 
determined that the fascia would be installed by CRA funds.  He recollected that the 
sidewalks were part of the renovations because for a few more dollars, the entire 
sidewalk would be done.  He said that he is not in favor of an assessment fee at this 
time due to the economy. 
 
Mr. Maurodis said that the funds are tax increment funds and they are used to improve 
both public and private facilities.  CRA’s are created for that purpose, under the concept 
that if you upgrade the private facilities as well, the revenue will increase because the 
tax value will increase. 
 
Mr. Ganz said that just because they are in a CRA does not mean they are levied a 
special CRA charge for being in the CRA; they are paying the same taxes whether they 
are in a CRA or not.  It is skimmed from the top and goes into a special fund that they 
use to rehabilitate their area, and they are getting a huge benefit. 
 
Mr. Maurodis said that their property taxes are not increased and the tax money would 
go to Broward County, the North Broward Hospital District, stays here, but the property 
taxes are not increased as a result of this. 
 
Mr. Hanson directed Mr. Klopp to setup a meeting with Keith and Associates on 
tomorrow. 
 
Mr. Miller said that he had asked that the possibility of stamped concrete be explored 
instead of pavers. 
 
Main Beach Parking Lot Expansion – Mr. Klopp said that they have conducted their first 
meeting with Keith and Associates on the conceptual design.  Currently, it is going 
through the Planning and Zoning process (Staff review).  He said that they will move 
forward with construction and are coordinating with the adjacent property owner to show 
them the plans and make sure they are comfortable. 
 
Chair Noland asked that the Commission be informed when the project commences. 
 
Dumpster - Mr. Klopp reported that they screened a dumpster behind the fire station on 
Ocean Way; although it is a minor project he wanted to inform the Board. 
 



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

10 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED 
 
Public Outreach / Annual Reporting – Mr. Klopp said that public outreach and annual 
reporting work hand in hand.  Therefore, an annual report must be prepared and 
submitted to the Board and the State.  He said that other CRAs take advantage of that 
requirement and also use it as a public report with pictures and project updates, etc.  
He further stated that the outreach tent events were so successful that he would like to 
create an annual calendar of times when the CRA tent will be available. 
 
Cove Professional Center – Mr. Klopp said that this was a small contract that an 
engineer was hired to design a public plaza, but it is really on the Cove Professional 
Center’s property.   They had previously requested a façade grant that was denied.  
Additionally, Mr. Klopp said that there would be changes to make the brick paver from 
the Hillsboro Streetscape Project between the Cove Professional Center sidewalks 
appear uniform.  He said that the CRA will design it and they will decide whether to fund 
construction.  There will be a continuation possibly benches, landscaping, lighting, etc, 
to match Hillsboro Boulevard to the Shopping Center.  Lastly, the engineer has 
provided a few concepts that are being reviewed; they will communicate with the 
engineer and Cove Professional Center to determine the next step. 
 
Chair Noland asked that Mr. Klopp communicate to the owners to clean up behind the 
building on15th Avenue. 
 
Landscaping – Mr. Klopp said that the landscaping near the townhomes was fixed up 
and as a result they have reformed the association and every Saturday they go out as a 
group and pickup trash.  He further advised that they have invited him to speak about 
the parking lot improvements. 
 
Mr. Ganz applauded Mr. Klopp for his community outreach.  He said that the input that 
was received at Public Works was completely different than what Mr. Klopp said he 
received from the general public.  He asked if the individuals offering feedback were 
residents or visitors.   
 
Mr. Klopp replied that the input received at the beach and the A1A Meeting was very 
consistent.  
 
Mr. Ganz said that at the Public Works Meeting, it was indicated that Item “A” was the 
most popular, but at the Beach, it was Item “B”. 
 
Mr. Klopp gave an update of what transpired at the meeting held at the Public Works 
Facility; the alternative to extend Hillsboro Boulevard and go behind Howard Johnson’s 
received 50% support.  The alternative is to only do landscaping, pedestrian safety, etc, 
but not improving traffic, also received approximately 50% support.  The alternative to 
widen A1A received a total of 3 votes.  He said that is very consistent with what has 
been heard by various individuals on the beach with the tent; people did not want to see 
A1A expanded as it would be difficult to cross and create more traffic that would be 
moving at a quicker pace on the S-Curve.  He said some liked the opportunity to have  



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

11 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
an alternate route behind Howard Johnson’s and through Hillsboro; then some only 
wanted landscaping and safety measures.   
 
Mr. Ganz asked for an explanation regarding the color scheme for the Cove 
Professional Center. 
 
Mr. Klopp replied upon completion of the Hillsboro sidewalk, it was made smooth again 
by reinstalling concrete.  He said that there was an opportunity to create a plaza and 
this was a way to get Mr. Roger Hampton off his façade grant that he was not happy 
about.  He said that the agreement was that the CRA would design it and show him 
possible renderings, along with the probable cost.  Nevertheless, it would be their cost 
to make it happen.   
 
Additionally, Mr. Klopp said that he believes more offers of this nature should be made.  
He spoke of an example with Pizzarella, wherein the area could be beautified with 
landscaping as there is no incentive.  He said that this approach was done with the 
Cove Shopping Center, and was approved by the Board. 
 
Mr. Ganz said that this was done for the façade program, but there was little interest.  
He said that he is willing to work with the businesses, but does not want to gravel.   
 
Vice Chair Poitier commented on installing brick paver sidewalks from the beach to the 
turnpike.   
 
Mr. Klopp said that the CRA goes away in 20 years and the investment that will result in 
the street will be tax dollars to the City. 
 
Mr. Hanson asked that Mr. Klopp explain the process for creating another CRA in other 
parts of the City. 
 
Mr. Klopp said that not only is it difficult, but if you succeed, you do not get the funding.  
He said that there is a possibility that the County and State are looking at creating 
transit oriented development in transit stations along the FEC corridor and realizes that 
the only way to implement it would be through tax increment funding (TIF).  There may 
be a countywide shift back toward allowing TIF to come to CRA’s but only for transit 
oriented development that is in conformance with their plans.  That would potentially 
extend our ability to have TIF over in the area around Dixie Highway. 
 
Mr. Miller asked who picked out the colors that can be chosen for the 1500 building and 
the Cove Shopping Center; as many people are not happy with the colors.  He further 
explained that the colors are not Key West.   
 
Mr. Klopp replied that it was a part of the Cove Shopping Center Charrette, a color 
palette was approved and then the plans to conform come before the Community 
Appearance Board.  He said that he understands that the color is not the issue, but the  



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

12 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
architecture in terms of size.  He said that an architect will break the colors up with 
other façade improvements to make them work.  He said those are the changes that 
need to be made in the Cove and possibly the process.    
 
Mr. Miller asked that we look into this before spending millions of dollars. 
 
Chair Noland commented on the colors not blending in.   
 
In response to Mr. Ganz’s question, Chair Noland said that the Community Appearance 
Board only views a small swatch and not visualizing a building being painted in that 
color.   
 
Mr. Miller said that if there can be an improvement, he would like Staff to look into any 
possibilities.  He asked if there was a possibility of the restaurant remaining open during 
the phases as it is a hardship to many of the tourists and the residents.  He said that he 
received feedback that the closure for three (3) months was not a pleasant experience.  
He asked that Staff try to coordinate the underneath and top being constructed and 
somehow minimize the closure and downtime of the restaurant.     
 
Chair Noland said that restaurant’s contract is temporary. 
 
Mr. Miller said that this is for the public. 
 
Chair Noland said that Caryl Berner brought to her attention that the beach fire station 
can be purchased by the CRA, refurbish, and then brought back by the City. 
 
Mr. Maurodis said that there may be a specific prohibition in Chapter 163 dealing with 
CRAs on restricting our ability to use tax increment funds for administrative or public 
buildings; we could not use it to improve the fire stations or city hall, as it is not for 
public buildings.  Therefore, it would be in violation of Chapter 163.  He said the funds 
are not there to help build a new city hall. 
 
Mr. Ganz said that Mr. Klopp had indicated that if we could prove that by improving the 
fire station, it would help attract businesses because it provides an economic benefit to 
the area.   
 
Mr. Maurodis said that he will have to check the statute unless there is a distinction 
between an administrative building and public safety building, but there is specific 
language with regard to administrative facilities.   
 
Mayor Noland commented on the fire station’s current condition.  
 
Mr. Miller asked if Tom Treacy, from the public could speak. 
 
Mr. Ganz suggested opening comments to allow the public to speak.   



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

13 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
It was the consensus of the Board to allow the public to speak. 
 
Tom Treacy, 1114 Little Harbor, said that he has been involved in developing many 
shopping centers in the area; i.e. the Delray Mall, the Falls Shopping Center, and 
others.  But never involved in a property wherein there is no charge for a parking lot.  
Since the City owns the parking lot and will improve it, it is very beneficial to the City to 
generate revenue.  He said that there are parking meters throughout the CRA area and 
suggested that it be part of the plan to install meters or common area maintenance.  He 
asked if the Board had considered these options as the parking lot will cost $150,000 to 
$250,000 annually to maintain.    
 
Mr. Hanson said that they are considering paying and displaying parking meters this 
budget year.   
 
In response to Mr. Treacy’s question, Mr. Hanson replied that pay and display meters 
will be recommended to the Commission during the budget process.  He said that there 
is an expense to install meters or pay and display. 
 
Mr. Popelsky said that other City owned parking areas should be considered.   
 
Chair Noland said that people will sometime park at the Cove Shopping Center and 
walk to the beach to avoid paying. 
 
Pam Militello, 884 SE 19th Avenue, said that the idea of taking over the sidewalks and 
making improvements came very late in the plan because some of the businesses may 
not want to come into compliance.  She said with CRA funds the Board can make those 
improvements, hopefully with no objections from the business owners not to want the 
improvements made.  If someone does object to the improvements, they are only trying 
to stonewall the project.  She said that the improvements will be a “win, win” for 
everyone.     
 
Rita Masi, 19th Avenue, suggested allowing some of the residents or owners of the 
Cove Shopping Center the opportunity to buy into some of the parking spots.  She said 
that it will be a hindrance to people who frequent the medical building to have to pay to 
park.  She suggested some type of arrangement with tickets for their patrons.   
 
Mr. Popelsky said that it is usually very difficult to maintain that because if a ticket is 
validated by the business, they end up paying for it.  Further, Mr. Popelsky asked if Mr. 
Klopp had heard anything about PAL’s Restaurant. 
 
Mr. Klopp replied that he had received a phone message, but has not heard anything 
as of yet.  He said that there is one interesting development; the owners of the property 
will be assisting with the Pig in the Park event, by opening up the area for parking, to 
encourage the vision for connecting the walkway between the Cove Shopping Center 
and Sullivan Park to the north.   



CRA Meeting Minutes  March 9, 2010 

14 
 

BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
Continuing, Mr. Klopp said that they have considered creating an agreement with the 
Cove Shopping Center property owners whereby they would take over maintenance 
over time; the CRA would pay for maintenance in the first two (2) years, the property 
owners and CRA would pay a certain percentage, and then increase the percentage 
each year.  Therefore, by the end of the CRA existent they will have 100% of the 
maintenance costs for the parking lot. 
 
Chair Noland said that Mr. Treacy was trying to create more revenue for the City.  Chair 
Noland also commented on not generating revenue from the Palm Plaza parking lot.   
 
Mr. Klopp said that to hit them with an immediate assessment will cause potential 
delays; he suggested phasing it in. 
 
Mr. Popelsky said that with this recession, he thinks it would be detrimental at this time 
to consider having the business owners contribute additional funds over time.  He said 
that he does not want to increase any expenditure to the owners as they will pass it 
down to the renters.  He suggested discussing it once the recession has ended.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m.  
 
 

 
  _____________________________ 

                 PEGGY NOLAND, CRA CHAIR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
ADA GRAHAM-JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 


	Tuesday, March 9, 2010, 6:00 P.M.
	The meeting was called to order by Chair Noland at 6:00 p.m. on the above date in the City Commission Chambers, City Hall.
	Roll Call:
	Ada Graham-Johnson, MMC, City Clerk
	UApproval of the Agenda

	UOld Business
	UNew Business


